
 

 

AGENDA 

 
 

 
STREETSCENE AND ENGINEERING CABINET 

BOARD 
 

Immediately Following Scrutiny Committee on  
FRIDAY, 20 OCTOBER 2017 

 
COMMITTEE ROOMS A/B - NEATH CIVIC CENTRE 

 

 
PART 1 
 
1.  To agree the Chairperson for this Meeting   

 
2.  To receive any Declarations of Interest from Members   

 
3.  To receive the Minutes of the Previous Streetscene and 

Engineering Cabinet Board held 8 September, 2017  (Pages 3 - 8) 
 
To receive the Report of the Head of Engineering and 
Transport 
 

4.  Traffic Order - Church Lane, Gwaen Cae Gurwen  (Pages 9 - 14) 
 

5.  Traffic Order - Company St and Cory St, Resolven  (Pages 15 - 32) 
 

6.  Traffic Order - Heol Compton and Villiers Road, Skewen   
(Pages 33 - 36) 
 

7.  Traffic Order - Monastery Road, Neath Abbey  (Pages 37 - 42) 
 

8.  Traffic Order - Penyard Road, Neath Abbey  (Pages 43 - 50) 
 

9.  Traffic Order - Stratton Way, Neath Abbey  (Pages 51 - 62) 
 

10.  Traffic Order - The Pines, Cilfrew  (Pages 63 - 74) 
 



11.  Traffic Order - Water St and Corporation Rd, Port Talbot   
(Pages 75 - 78) 
 
To receive the Report of the Head of Streetcare 
 

12.  Review of Vehicle Crossover Applications  (Pages 79 - 86) 
 
To receive the Forward Work Programme 2017/18  
(Pages 87 – 89) 
 

13.  Any urgent items (whether public or exempt) at the discretion of the 
Chairman pursuant to Statutory Instrument 2001 No 2290 (as 
amended).   
 

 
S.Phillips 

Chief Executive 
 

Civic Centre 
Port Talbot 12 October, 2017 
 
 
 
Cabinet Board Members:  
 
Councillors: 
 

E.V.Latham and A.Wingrave 
 

 
 
Notes:  
 
 (1)  If any Cabinet Board Member is unable to attend, any other Cabinet Member may substitute as a 

voting Member on the Committee.  Members are asked to make these arrangements direct and 
then to advise the committee Section.   

 
(2) The views of the earlier Scrutiny Committee are to be taken into account in arriving at decisions 

(pre decision scrutiny process).  
 



- 14 - 
 

80917 

 
EXECUTIVE DECISION RECORD 

 
CABINET BOARD - 8 SEPTEMBER, 2017 

 
STREETSCENE AND ENGINEERING CABINET BOARD 

 

 
 
Cabinet Board Members: 
 
Councillors: 
 

D.W.Davies and E.V.Latham (Chairperson) 
 

Officer in Attendance: 
 
T.Davies 
 

 
1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRPERSON  

 
Agreed that Councillor E.V.Latham be appointed as Chairperson for the 
meeting. 
 
 

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS STREETSCENE AND ENGINEERING 
CABINET BOARD HELD ON 14 JULY, 2017  
 
Noted by the committee. 
 
 

3. HOUSEHOLD WASTE RECYCLING CENTRE OPENING HOURS  
 
Decision: 
 
That the monitoring report be noted. 
 
 

4. REVIEW OF PEST CONTROL FEES AND CHARGES  
 
Taking on board the discussion of Members at the earlier Scrutiny 
Committee, Cabinet Board resolved to raise the NPT Residential 
charges by £8 instead of the proposed £15 as detailed within the report 
(to £39 instead of £46), with the Residential out of hours visit charge 
increasing by £15 instead of the proposed £31 as detailed in the 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



- 15 - 
 

80917 

circulated report (to £76 instead of £92). This would be reviewed in 12 
months’ time. NPT Commercial and NPT Contracts charges would 
increase as per Officers recommendations within the circulated report. 
 
Decisions: 
 
1. That from 1 October 2017 it is proposed that the fees and charges 

across the pest control service increase to a level that will allow the 
service to become more sustainable, as set out in the table below; 

 
2. That the number of treatments/revisits included within the fee be 

limited, as shown in the table below; 
 
3. That the fees be reviewed in 12 months time. 
 

Neath Port 
Talbot CBC 

Type of Pest Proposed 
Charges 

Included 

NPT-Residential Rats/Mice 
 
Cockroaches 
 
Bedbugs 
 
Fleas 
 
Wasps 
 
Ants 
 
Out of hours visit 
 

£39.00 
 
£39.00 
 
£39.00 
 
£39.00 
 
£39.00 
 
£39.00 
 
£76.00 

Up to 3 visits 
 
Up to 3 visits 
 
Up to 3 visits 
 
Per visit 
 
Per visit 
 
Per visit 
 
As above, however 
where more than 1 
visit is included 
only the first visit 
will be an ‘out of 
hours’ visit. 

 

NPT- 
Commercial 

 

Rats/Mice/Insects. 
 
 

 

£76.00 plus 
VAT 

 

Per visit 
 

 

NPT- Contracts 
 

All pests 
 
 

 

£300 annually 
 

4 visits per year 
Plus up to 4 call 
outs during office 
times 

Page 4



- 16 - 
 

80917 

 
 
Reason for Decisions: 
 
To reduce the deficit in the delivery of the pest control service and to 
enable the service to become more sustainable in future years. 
 
Implementation of Decision: 
 
The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period. 
 
 

5. LIST OF APPROVED CONTRACTORS  
 
Decision: 
 
That the following Contractor be included on the Approved List for the 
relevant categories (as detailed in the table below). 
 

FIRM 
 

CATEGORY 

Cyflawn Construction Ltd 15, 17a and 17b, 18, 
19, 21, 28, 30, 37, 41, 
45, 47, 48, 49, 50 and 
68 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To keep the Approved List up to date and as far as possible ensure a 
competitive procurement process, as well as for the purpose of supplying 
a List of Contractors for invitation to tender within the relevant category. 
 
Implementation of Decision: 
 
The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period. 
 
Consultation: 
 
The Approved List of Contractors is promoted on NPT web pages and 
through local events. 
 
 

Page 5



- 17 - 
 

80917 

6. PROPOSED REMOVAL OF THE TAXI RANK, SUBSTITUTION FOR 
DISABLED BADGE HOLDERS AND LOADING ONLY AT OLD 
MARKET STREET, NEATH  
 
Decision: 
 
That the Legal Order for the revocation of the taxi rank in Old Market 
Street, Neath and the substitution for ‘Disabled Badge Holders’ Monday 
to Saturday 8am to 6pm (2 vehicles spaces only) and for ‘Loading Only’ 
Monday to Saturday 8am to 6pm for 30 minutes (Appendix B to the 
circulated report) be advertised as indicated on the attached plan 
(Appendix B to the circulated report) and subject to there being no 
objections, the Order be implemented. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To regularise the full time taxi rank provision following the demolition of 
the multi storey car park.   
 
 

7. PROPOSED TRAFFIC ORDERS: GLAN YR AFON, YSTALYFERA  
 
Decision: 
 
That the Legal Orders for the implementation of a One-Way and No 
Entry Order on Glan Yr Afon, Ystalyfera (Appendix A to the circulated 
report), and subject to there being no objections, the Orders be 
implemented. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To assist in the flow of traffic due to the narrowness of the road in the 
interest of road safety. 
 
Implementation of Decision: 
 
The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period. 
 
Consultation: 
 
This item will be subject to external consultation. 
 
 
 

Page 6



- 18 - 
 

80917 

8. QUARTER 1 PERFORMANCE MONITORING 2017/18  
 
Decision: 
 
That the monitoring report be noted. 
 
 
 

 
CHAIRPERSON 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Streetscene & Engineering Cabinet Board  
20 October 2017 

 
Report of the Head of Engineering & Transport 

D. W. Griffiths 
 

Matter for Decision  
 
Wards Affected: Gwaun Cae Gurwen 
 
Proposed No Waiting at Anytime Order Church Lane, Gwaun cae 
Gurwen 
 
Purpose of Report  
 
1. To consider the objections received following the advertisement of the 
 above scheme as indicated in Appendix A. 
 
Executive Summary  
 
2.  One letter of objection was received contained in Appendix C. 

 
3. The report outlines the objection and the recommendations for the 
 scheme.  
 
Background  
 
4. The Orders were advertised and one letter of objection was received 
 contained in Appendix C. 
 
5. The objectors would like the extent of the order shortened to cover the 
 frontage of no. 15 Heol y Gors only.  This would reduce the extent of 
 the yellow lines not exceeding 5 metres. 
 
6. This reduction of less than 5 metres could be accommodated within 
 the proposed order without the need to re-advertise, as indicated in 
 Appendix B.  
 
7. The Local Member has been consulted and the Member supports the 
 suggestion in point no.6 above. 
 
Financial Impact  
 
8.  The work will be funded by the Capital Works Programme.  Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 
Equality Impact Assessment  
 
9. A Screening Assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in 

discharging its Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act 2010.  
After completing the assessment, it has been determined that this 
function does not require an Equality Impact Assessment.   

 
Workforce Impacts  
 
10. There are no workforce impacts associated with this report.  
 
Legal Impacts  
 
11. The scheme was advertised for a 21-day period.  
 
Risk Management  
   
12.  There are no risk management issues associated with this scheme.  
 
Consultation Outcome 
 
13. A consultation exercise was carried out when the scheme was 

 advertised.  
 

14. One letter of partial objection was received contained in Appendix C. 
 

15. The Local Member has been consulted and the Member supports the 
 suggestion to overrule the objection but to reduce the extent of the 
 order within the allowable parameters of less than 5 metres when the 
 physical works are undertaken, as indicated in Appendix B. 

 
Recommendations  
 
16. It is recommended that:-  
 
  The objection is over ruled and the extent of the order adjusted within 
 the allowable parameters of less than 5 metres when the works are 
 implemented and the objector is informed accordingly. 
 
Reasons for Proposed Decision  
 
17. To prevent indiscriminate parking in the interest of highway safety.  

 
 
 Page 10



Implementation of Decision  
 
18. The decision is proposed for implementation after the three-day call-in 

 period.  
 
Appendices  
 
19. Appendix A – Plan of the original scheme 
20. Appendix B – Plan of revised scheme  
21. Appendix C - Letter of objection 

 
List of Background Papers 
 
22. None 
 
Officer Contact  
 
Mr Martin Brumby, Engineering & Transport 
Tel. No. 01639 686013 
Email m.brumby@npt.gov.uk    
 
 

Page 11

mailto:m.brumby@npt.gov.uk


Appendix A 
 

Page 12



Appendix B 
 

Page 13



Appendix C 
 

 

Page 14



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Streetscene & Engineering Cabinet Board  
20 October 2017 

 
Report of the Head of Engineering & Transport 

D. W. Griffiths 
 

Matter for Decision  
 
Wards Affected: Resolven 
 
Proposed One Way Order and No Entry Order: Company Street and 
Cory Street, Resolven 
 
Purpose of Report  
 
1. To consider the objections received following the advertisement of the 
 above scheme as indicated in Appendix A. 
  
Executive Summary  
 
2. 11 objections were received to the scheme including three 
 petitions with a total of 70 names. 
 
3. The Police had stated that they would not enforce the Orders unless 
 there was unanimous public support. 
 
4. The report outlines the objections and the recommendations for the 
 scheme. 
 
5. The objection letter from South Wales Police is contained in Appendix 
 B. 
 
6. The objection letters containing petitions and the petitions are 
 contained in Appendix C. 
 
Background  
 
7.  The Local Member had presented the idea of making Company Street 

 and Cory Street one way following representations from the 
 community. 
 

8.  However, following the consultation period there were significant 
 objections to the proposal and therefore the Police would not support 
 the scheme. The proposed scheme is indicated in Appendix A.  Page 15

Agenda Item 5



Financial Impact  
 
9.  The work will be funded by the Capital Works Programme.  
 
Equality Impact Assessment  
 
10. A Screening Assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in 

 discharging its Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act 
 2010.  After completing the assessment, it has been determined that 
 this function does not require an Equality Impact Assessment.   

 
Workforce Impacts  
 
11. There are no workforce impacts associated with this report.  
 
Legal Impacts  
 
12. The scheme was advertised for a 21-day period.  
 
Risk Management  
   
13.  There are no risk management issues associated with this scheme.  
 
Consultation 
 
14. A consultation exercise was carried out when the scheme was 

 advertised.  
 

15. 11 letters of objection were received including three petitions with a 
 total of 70 names. 
 

16. A letter of objection was received from the Police.  
 

17. The objection letters are contained in Appendix B. 
 

18. The objection letters containing petition and the petitions are contained 
 in Appendix C. 
 

19. The objections have been discussed with the Local Member whom 
 supports the withdrawal of the scheme. 

 
 
 
 
 
 Page 16



Recommendations  
 
It is recommended that:-  
 
20. The proposed scheme is cancelled and removed from the Capital 

 Works Programme. 
 
Reasons for Proposed Decision  
 
21. The Police would not approve of the proposed order unless there was 

 significant public support which unfortunately there was not. 
 
22. Implementation of Decision  

 
 The decision is proposed for implementation after the three-day call-in 
 period.  
 

Appendices  
 
23. Appendix A – Plan of the proposed scheme 
24. Appendix B -  Letters of objection from South Wales Police 
25. Appendix C – Letters of objection containing petitions and those  

 petitions 
 
List of Background Papers 
 
26. None 
 
Officer Contact  
 
Mr Martin Brumby, Engineering & Transport 
Tel. No. 01639 686013 
Email m.brumby@npt.gov.uk    
 
 

Page 17

mailto:m.brumby@npt.gov.uk


Appendix A 

 
 
 

Page 18



Appendix B 
 

 

Page 19



Page 20



Appendix C 
 

 

Page 21



 

Page 22



 

Page 23



 

Page 24



 

Page 25



 

Page 26



 

Page 27



 

Page 28



 

Page 29



 

Page 30



 

Page 31



 

Page 32



 

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Streetscene & Engineering Cabinet Board  
20 October 2017 

 
Report of the Head of Engineering & Transport 

D. W. Griffiths 
 

Matter for Decision  
 
Wards Affected: Coedffranc Central 
 
Proposed No Waiting at Anytime Order: Heol Compton and Villiers 
Road, Skewen 
 
Purpose of Report  
 
1. To obtain Members’ approval to advertise the Legal Orders for the 
 implementation of a No Waiting at Anytime order at Heol Compton and 
 Villiers Road, Skewen. 
 
Executive Summary  
 
2.  The report outlines the proposed Order and the reason why the Order 

 is required.  
 
Background  
 
3.  The Orders are required to prevent indiscriminate parking in the 

 interest of highway safety. The proposed scheme is indicated in 
 Appendix A.  

 
Financial Impact  
 
4.  The work will be funded by the Developer.  
 
Equality Impact Assessment  
 
5.  A Screening Assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in 

 discharging its Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act 
 2010.  After completing the assessment, it has been determined that 
 this function does not require an Equality Impact Assessment.   

 
Workforce Impacts  
 
6.  There are no workforce impacts associated with this report.  

 Page 33

Agenda Item 6



 
 
Legal Impacts  
 
7.  To be advertised for a 21-day period.  
 
Risk Management  
   
8.  There are no risk management issues associated with this scheme.  
 
Consultation  
 
9.  A consultation exercise will be carried out when the scheme is 

 advertised.  
 
Recommendations  
 
It is recommended that:-  
 
10. Approval to advertise the proposed Traffic Regulation Order is granted 

 and if no objections are received the proposal is to be implemented. 
 
Reasons for Proposed Decision  
 
11. To prevent indiscriminate parking in the interest of highway safety. 
 
Implementation of Decision  
 
12. The decision is proposed for implementation after the three-day call-in 

 period.  
 
Appendices  
 
13. Appendix A – Plan of the proposed scheme. 
 
List of Background Papers 
 
14. None 
 
Officer Contact  
 
Mr Martin Brumby, Engineering & Transport 
Tel. No. 01639 686013 
Email m.brumby@npt.gov.uk    
 
 

Page 34

mailto:m.brumby@npt.gov.uk


Appendix A 
 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Streetscene & Engineering Cabinet Board  
20 October 2017 

 
Report of the Head of Engineering & Transport 

D. W. Griffiths 
 

Matter for Decision  
 
Wards Affected: Dyffryn  
 
Proposed No Waiting at Anytime Order and No Loading at Anytime 
Order: Monastery Road, Neath Abbey, Neath 
 
Purpose of Report  
 
1. To consider the objections received following the advertisement of the 
 above scheme as indicated in Appendix A. 
 
Executive Summary  
 
2.  One letter of objection was received contained in Appendix B. 

 
3.  One letter of support was received contained in Appendix C. 

 
4. The report outlines the objection and the recommendations for the 
 scheme.  
 
Background  
 
5. The Orders were advertised and one letter of objection was received 
 contained in Appendix B and one letter of support was received 
 contained in Appendix C. 
 
6. The objectors do not want further parking restrictions as this will effect 
 their business with particular reference to women parking some 
 distance away after dark. 
 
7. The letter of supports welcomes the proposals because the access to 
 their property is difficult due to the on street parking opposite their 
 entrance on the narrow Monastery Road. 
 
8. The proposed parking restrictions have been limited to the business 
 centre access to provide the minimum visibility needed at the junction 
 and also to the narrow section of carriageway adjacent to the railway Page 37

Agenda Item 7



 bridge in order to prevent vehicles restricting traffic flow and 
 pedestrians using the footway. 
 
9. The Local Member has been consulted and the Member supports the 
 scheme as advertised. 
 
Financial Impact  
 
10. The work will be funded by the Capital Works Programme.  
 
Equality Impact Assessment  
 
11. A Screening Assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in 

 discharging its Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act 
 2010.  After completing the assessment, it has been determined that 
 this function does not require an Equality Impact Assessment.   

 
Workforce Impacts  
 
12. There are no workforce impacts associated with this report.  
 
Legal Impacts  
 
13. The scheme was advertised for a 21-day period.  
 
Risk Management  
   
14.  There are no risk management issues associated with this scheme.  
 
Consultation Outcome 
 
15. A consultation exercise was carried out when the scheme was 

 advertised.  
 

16. One letter of objection was received contained in Appendix B. 
 

17. One letter of support was received contained in Appendix C. 
 

18. The objectors do not want further parking restrictions as this will effect 
 their business with particular reference to women parking some 
 distance away after dark. 
 

19. The letter of supports welcomes the proposals because access to their
  property is difficult due to the on street parking opposite their entrance 
 on the narrow Monastery Road. 
 Page 38



 
20. The Local Member has been consulted and the Member supports the 

 scheme as advertised. 
 
Recommendations  
 
21. It is recommended that:-  
 
  The objection is over ruled and the objector is informed accordingly. 
 
Reasons for Proposed Decision  
 
22. To prevent indiscriminate parking in the interest of highway safety and 
 to maintain traffic and pedestrian flow.  
 
Implementation of Decision  
 
The decision is proposed for implementation after the three-day call-in 
period.  
 
Appendices  
 
23. Appendix A – Plan of the original scheme 
24. Appendix B – Letter of objection 
25. Appendix C – Letter of support 

 
List of Background Papers 
 
26. None 
 
Officer Contact  
 
Mr Martin Brumby, Engineering & Transport 
Tel. No. 01639 686013 
Email m.brumby@npt.gov.uk    
 
 

Page 39

mailto:m.brumby@npt.gov.uk


Appendix A 
 

Page 40



Appendix B 
 

 

 

Page 41



Appendix C 
 

 

Page 42



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Streetscene & Engineering Cabinet Board  
20 October 2017 

 
Report of the Head of Engineering & Transport 

D. W. Griffiths 
 

Matter for Decision  
 
Wards Affected: Dyffryn 
 
Proposed No Waiting at Anytime Order: Penyard Road, Neath Abbey 
 
Purpose of Report  
 
1. To consider the objections received following the advertisement of the 
 above scheme as indicated in Appendix A. 
 
Executive Summary  
 
2.  One letter of objection was received which contained a petition of 46 

 names from 26 properties indicated in Appendix B. 
 

3. The report outlines the objections and the recommendations for the 
 scheme.  
 
Background  
 
4. The Orders were advertised and one letter of objection was received 
 which contained a petition of 46 names from 26 properties. 
 
5. The objectors do not wish to see increased parking restrictions due to 
 properties having more than one vehicle. They think that the existing 
 parking restrictions at the junction of Longford Road and Penyard 
 Road are sufficient as there is not enough parking capacity in the 
 street for the current demand. 
 
6. The proposal is to extend the existing yellow lines to protect the entry 
 and exit from the rear lane and to allow vehicles to pass on the 
 approach to and from Longford Road due to the narrowness of 
 Penyard Road. 
 
7. The scheme was proposed by the Local Member in the interest of 
 highway safety. 
 Page 43

Agenda Item 8



Financial Impact  
 
8.  The work will be funded by the Capital Works Programme.  
 
Equality Impact Assessment  
 
9.  A Screening Assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in 

 discharging its Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act 
 2010.  After completing the assessment, it has been determined that 
 this function does not require an Equality Impact Assessment.   

 
Workforce Impacts  
 
10. There are no workforce impacts associated with this report.  
 
Legal Impacts  
 
11. The scheme was advertised for a 21-day period.  
 
Risk Management  
   
12.  There are no risk management issues associated with this scheme.  
 
Consultation Outcome 
 
13. A consultation exercise was carried out when the scheme was 

 advertised.  
 

14. One letter of objection was received containing a petition of 46 names 
 from 26 properties indicated in Appendix B.  
 

15. The Local Member has been consulted and advised on the objections 
 and petition received.  The Local Member maintains support for the 
 scheme as advertised. 

 
Recommendations  
 
16. It is recommended that:-  
 
The objections are over ruled and the scheme is implemented as 
previously advertised and that the objector is informed accordingly. 
 
Reasons for Proposed Decision  
 
17. To prevent indiscriminate parking in the interest of highway safety. 
 Page 44



 
Implementation of Decision  
 
18. The decision is proposed for implementation after the three-day call-in 

 period.  
 
Appendices  
 
19. Appendix A – Plan of the original scheme. 
20. Appendix B – Letter of objection and petition. 

 
List of Background Papers 
 
21. None 
 
Officer Contact  
 
Mr Martin Brumby, Engineering & Transport 
Tel. No. 01639 686013 
Email m.brumby@npt.gov.uk    
 
 

Page 45

mailto:m.brumby@npt.gov.uk


Appendix A 
 

Page 46



Appendix B 
 

 

Page 47



 

Page 48



 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Streetscene & Engineering Cabinet Board  
20 October 2017 

 
Report of the Head of Engineering & Transport 

D. W. Griffiths 
 

Matter for Decision  
 
Wards Affected: Dyffryn   
 
Proposed No Waiting at Anytime Order: Stratton Way, Neath Abbey, 
Neath 
 
Purpose of Report  
 
1. To consider the objections received following the advertisement of the 
 above scheme, as indicated in Appendix A. 
 
Executive Summary  
 
2.  One letter of objection was received because the occupants want to 

 park on the road outside their property instead of being forced to 
 continually reverse in and out of their narrow driveway which is 
 difficult. The letter is indicated in Appendix B. 
 

3.  Four letters of support were received, as indicated in Appendix C. 
 

4. The report outlines the objection and the recommendations for the 
 scheme.  
 
Background  
 
5. The Orders were advertised and one letter of objection (Appendix B) 
 and four letters of support (Appendix C) were received. 
 
6. The objectors want to park outside their property on the highway as 
 their driveway is narrow and difficult to reverse out of.  
 
7. The Local Member has been consulted and advised on the feedback 
 following the advertisement of the Legal Order.  The Member supports 
 the implementation of the scheme as originally advertised. 
 
 
 Page 51

Agenda Item 9



Financial Impact  
 
8. The work will be funded by the Capital Works Programme.  

 
Equality Impact Assessment  
 
9.  A Screening Assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in 

 discharging its Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act 
 2010.  After completing the assessment, it has been determined that 
 this function does not require an Equality Impact Assessment.   

 
Workforce Impacts  
 
10. There are no workforce impacts associated with this report.  
 
Legal Impacts  
 
11. The scheme was advertised for a 21-day period.  
 
Risk Management  
   
12.  There are no risk management issues associated with this scheme.  
 
Consultation Outcome 
 
13. A consultation exercise was carried out when the scheme was 

 advertised. 
 

14. The Orders were advertised and one letter of objection (Appendix B) 
 and four letters of support (Appendix C) were received.   
 

15. The objectors want to parking outside their property on the highway as 
 their driveway is narrow and difficult to reverse out of.  
 

16. The Local Member has been consulted and the Member supports the 
 scheme. 

 
Recommendations  
 
17. It is recommended that:-  
 
  The objection is overruled and the objector is informed accordingly.  
 
Reasons for Proposed Decision  
 
18. To prevent indiscriminate parking in the interest of highway safety.  Page 52



Implementation of Decision  
 
19. The decision is proposed for implementation after the three-day call-in 

 period.  
 
Appendices  
 
20. Appendix A – Plan of the original scheme 
21. Appendix B – Letter of objection 
22. Appendix C – Letters of support 

 
List of Background Papers 
 
23. None 
 
Officer Contact  
 
Mr Martin Brumby, Engineering & Transport 
Tel. No. 01639 686013 
Email m.brumby@npt.gov.uk    
 
 

Page 53

mailto:m.brumby@npt.gov.uk


Appendix A 
 

Page 54



Appendix B 
 

 

Page 55



 

 

Page 56



Appendix C 
 

 

Page 57



 

Page 58



 

Page 59



 

Page 60



 

Page 61



 

Page 62



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Streetscene & Engineering Cabinet Board  
20 October 2017 

 
Report of the Head of Engineering & Transport 

D. W. Griffiths 
 

Matter for Decision  
 
Wards Affected: Aberdulais 
 
Proposed No Waiting at Anytime Order and No Loading at Anytime 
Order: The Pines, Cilfrew 
 
Purpose of Report  
 
1. To consider the objections received following the advertisement of the 
 above scheme as indicated in Appendix A. 
 
Executive Summary  
 
2.  Three letters of objection were received with one letter containing a 

 petition from 16 properties.  
 

3.  Two letters of objection are contained in Appendix C and the letter of 
 objection containing the petition contained in Appendix D. 
 

4. The report outlines the objections and the recommendations for the 
 scheme.  
 
Background  
 
5. The Orders were advertised and three letters of objection were 
 received including a petition from 16 properties. These are contained 
 in Appendix C and D. 
 
6. The objectors do not want parking restrictions directly outside their 
 properties because the available off street parking on the driveways 
 will not accommodate the number of family vehicles. 

 
7. The Local Member has been consulted and the Member supports a 
 revised scheme which is indicated in Appendix B.  
 
 
 Page 63

Agenda Item 10



Financial Impact  
 
8. The work will be funded by the Capital Works Programme.  
 
Equality Impact Assessment  
 
9. A Screening Assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in 

discharging its Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act 2010.  
After completing the assessment, it has been determined that this 
function does not require an Equality Impact Assessment.   

 
Workforce Impacts  
 
10. There are no workforce impacts associated with this report.  
 
Legal Impacts  
 
11. The scheme was advertised for a 21-day period.  
 
Risk Management  
   
12. There are no risk management issues associated with this scheme.  
 
Consultation Outcome 
 
13. A consultation exercise was carried out when the scheme was 

 advertised.  
 

14. Three letters of objection were received including one letter containing 
 a petition from 16 properties.  
 

15. The Local Member has been consulted and the Member support the 
 revised scheme as indicated in Appendix B. 

 
Recommendations  
 
It is recommended that:-  
 
16. The objections are upheld and a revised scheme advertised and if no 

 objections are received the scheme shall be implemented. 
 
Reasons for Proposed Decision  
 
17. To prevent indiscriminate parking in the interest of highway safety.  
 
 Page 64



Implementation of Decision  
 
18. The decision is proposed for implementation after the three-day call-in 

 period.  
 

Appendices  
 
19. Appendix A – Plan of the original scheme. 
20. Appendix B – Plan of revised scheme. 
21. Appendix C – Two letters of objection. 
22. Appendix D – Letter of objection containing petition and the petition. 

 
List of Background Papers 
 
23. None 
 
Officer Contact  
 
Mr Martin Brumby, Engineering & Transport 
Tel. No. 01639 686013 
Email m.brumby@npt.gov.uk    
 
 

Page 65

mailto:m.brumby@npt.gov.uk


Appendix A 
 

Page 66



Appendix B 
 

 

Page 67



Appendix C 

  

Page 68



 

Page 69



 

Page 70



Page 71



Appendix D 
 

 

Page 72



 

Page 73



 

Page 74



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Streetscene & Engineering Cabinet Board  
20 October 2017 

 
Report of the Head of Engineering & Transport 

D. W. Griffiths 
 

Matter for Decision  
 
Wards Affected: Aberavon 
 
Proposed Prohibition of Waiting at Anytime Order: Prohibition of 
Waiting, Loading and Unloading at Anytime Order: Speed Cushions at 
Water Street and Corporation Road, Aberavon, Port Talbot 
 
Purpose of Report  
 
1. To obtain Members’ approval to advertise the above Legal Orders for 
 the implementation at Water Street and Corporation Road Aberavon, 
 Port Talbot. 
 
Executive Summary  
 
2.  The report outlines the proposed Orders and the reason why the 

 Orders are required.  
 
Background  
 
3.  The Orders are required to prevent indiscriminate parking and reduce 

 traffic speed in the interest of highway safety. The proposed scheme is 
 indicated in Appendix A.  

 
Financial Impact  
 
4.  The work will be funded by the Local Transport Network Fund from the 

 Welsh Government (LTNF).  
 
Equality Impact Assessment  
 
5.  A Screening Assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in 

 discharging its Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act 
 2010.  After completing the assessment, it has been determined that 
 this function does not require an Equality Impact Assessment.   

 
 Page 75

Agenda Item 11



Workforce Impacts  
 
6.  There are no workforce impacts associated with this report.  

 
Legal Impacts  
 
7.  To be advertised for a 21-day period.  
 
Risk Management  
   
8.  There are no risk management issues associated with this scheme.  
 
Consultation  
 
9.  A consultation exercise will be carried out when the scheme is 

 advertised.  
 
Recommendations  
 
It is recommended that:-  
 
10. Approval to advertise the proposed Traffic Regulation Orders is 

 granted and if no objections are received the proposal is to be 
 implemented. 

 
Reasons for Proposed Decision  
 
11. To prevent indiscriminate parking and reduce traffic speed in the 

 interest of highway safety. 
 
Implementation of Decision  
 
12. The decision is proposed for implementation after the three-day call-in 

 period.  
 

Appendices  
 
13. Appendix A – Plan of the proposed scheme. 
 
List of Background Papers 
14. None. 
 
Officer Contact  
Mr Martin Brumby, Engineering & Transport 
Tel. No. 01639 686013 
Email m.brumby@npt.gov.uk    Page 76

mailto:m.brumby@npt.gov.uk


Appendix A 
 

  
 

 

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Street Scene & Engineering Cabinet Board 
20 October 2017 

 
Report of the Head of Streetcare 

M. Roberts 
 

Matter for Decision 
 
Wards Affected:  All Wards 
 
Review of vehicle crossover applications 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1 To review the application process for vehicle crossovers 
 
 
Background 
 
 General 
 
2 Vehicle crossovers are the points at which drivers of mechanically 

propelled vehicles cross adopted highway, i.e. footway or verge, in 
order to gain access to and from the road adjacent to their 
property. 

 
3. If, for example, residents wish to convert the front of their property 

to off-street parking, or install a new field gate to their land etc., 
then they need to: 

 
a) Apply to the Highway Authority for permission for a vehicle 

crossover; and, where permission is granted; 
b) Construct a crossover to the standard required by the Highway 

Authority given it will become art of the adopted highway. 
 
4 Submitted applications are assessed to determine if the Council, 

as Highway Authority, is satisfied there is safe access and egress 
to and from the premises, and a new crossover would not 
adversely affect the movement of traffic in the highway.  However 
premises with a frontage directly onto a classified road need to 
gain planning permission before a new vehicle crossover can be 

Page 79

Agenda Item 12



installed, and in this case Highway Authority observations are 
sought as part of the planning application process. 

 
 The current position in NPT 
 
5. The cost of planning applications is set nationally, whilst this 

council currently charges a £95 application fee in respect of 
unclassified roads.  There was an average 87 applications per 
year over the last 3 years to construct a vehicle crossover on 
unclassified roads.  

 
6 Where applications are approved on both unclassified and 

classified roads, applicants are sent a pack including a standard 
specification for the work, a list of statutory undertakers for plant 
enquires, and an indemnity form. 

 
7 Under current policy, the applicant can choose to build a crossover 

themselves or employ a contractor to build an approved crossover, 
subject to having public liability insurance of £5 million. 

 
8 Under Section 184 of the Highways Act 1980, the Council has 

powers to build a crossover over a kerbed footway or verge and as 
such the Council can provide applicants with a quotation to 
construct an approved crossover for them.  Alternatively, under 
Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980, the Council can enter into 
an agreement with a landowner/developer to construct a vehicle 
crossover in the public highway as the Council’s agent. 

 
9. In the case of when the Council is resurfacing a footway as part of 

ongoing maintenance, and finds an unauthorised (and thereby 
illegal) crossover is present, then in the event the presence of the 
crossover passes the usual ‘safety’ assessment test then current 
practice is to offer construction of a crossover as part of the works 
for a nominal fee of £52, which at current costs is below the value 
of the works. 

 
 The position in Neighbouring Authorities  
 
10 Neighbouring Local Authorities have varying processes for vehicle 

crossover applications as set out below. 
 
 Swansea: An application fee of £88 is charged which is non-

refundable.  If a crossover is approved then the works can only be 

Page 80



completed by the Council’s direct labour organisation.  The 
quotation provided to applicants is non-negotiable and normally in 
the region of £1300-£1400 for a standard crossover. 

 
Carmarthenshire: An application fee of £135 is charged which is 
non-refundable.  Works must be completed by ‘streetworks 
qualified’ private contractors under a licence agreement.  The cost 
for the works is a matter between the contractor and the applicant. 
 
Bridgend: An application fee of £114 is charged, of which £57 is for 
the initial application and is non-refundable).  Works must be 
completed by private contractors registered and approved with 
‘Construction Line’ under an indemnification.  The cost for the 
works is again a matter between the contractor and the applicant. 

 
Issues for Neath Port Talbot 
 
11 The main issues for consideration are: 
 

o Set an appropriate application fee in respect of new vehicle 
crossover applications on unclassified road; 

o Ensuring crossovers are constructed to the appropriate 
standard given the Council will become responsible for 
ongoing maintenance  

o Dealing with illegal crossings as and when they are found on 
footways about to undergo maintenance; and, 

o Dealing with illegal crossings generally. 
 
Setting an appropriate application fee 
 
12 Having reviewed current costs it is proposed that the Council 

charge an application fee of £130 in respect of vehicle crossover 
applications.  If the application is refused than it is proposed that 
£60, which is included to cover the cost of construction monitoring, 
be refunded. 

 
Ensuring crossovers are constructed to the appropriate standard 
 
13 It is necessary to determine how best to ensure, so far as is 

reasonable commensurate with the work, that any construction is 
under taken to the Council’s requirements.  The options here are 
to: 

 

Page 81



 Require that the Council’s Direct Labour Organisation 
undertakes the work; 

 Require an applicant to use a contractor approved by the 
Council, along with the provision of suitable public liability 
indemnity during the work, and conduct on-site inspection at 
the time of construction. (An issue with this approach is that 
the Council does not currently maintain an approved list of 
contractors for this work); 

 Require an applicant to use a ‘streetworks qualified’ private 
contractor under a licence agreement; or, 

 Require an applicant to use a private contractor registered 
and approved with ‘Construction Line’, along with the 
provision of public liability indemnity during the work 
(Bridgend are currently looking to review their approach) 

 
From these options, the use of either the Council’s DLO, or a 
‘Streetworks Qualified’ private contractor working under a Licence 
Agreement are the preferred approaches. 

 
14. It is proposed that this Council should require an applicant for a 

vehicle crossover to engage either a ‘Streetworks Qualified’ private 
contractor working under a Licence Agreement, or alternatively, 
the applicant can engage the Council’s DLO to undertake the work 
in the case where a quotation for the work has been requested and 
provided. 

 
Dealing with illegal crossings as and when they are found on footways 
about to undergo maintenance 
 
14 It is proposed to revise the current charge for constructing a 

vehicle crossover as part of a footway resurfacing scheme.  The 
proposed standard fee is £480.00 (for a total of up to 6 kerbs 
comprising 2 dropper kerbs and 4 straight drop kerbs).  Additional 
kerbs over the standard 6 kerbs would then be charged at £100 
each. [A quotation for undertaking work independent of a 
maintenance scheme would be more than double this amount] 

 
15. If resident do not wish to pay for the crossing to be formalised then 

the Council will simply remove any obstruction such as ramps 
installed in the road channel line. 

 
 
 

Page 82



Dealing with illegal road crossings generally 
 
17 The Council as the Highway Authority for the purposes of the 

Highways Act 1980 can take enforcement action relating to illegal 
crossovers. 

 
18 It is proposed the Council continue to deal with public complaints 

relating illegal vehicle crossovers on a case by case basis. 
 
Financial Impact 
 
19 All costs associated with vehicle crossover applications and their 

construction should be covered by the applicant and as such, 
where charges are indicated, these have been set on the basis of 
recovering the Council’s reasonable costs.  

 
Equality Impact Assessment 
 
20 A Screening Assessment has been undertaken to assist the 

Council in discharging its Public Sector Equality Duty under the 
Equality Act 2010.  After completing the assessment it has been 
determined that this proposal does not require an Equalities 
Impact Assessment 

 

Workforce Impact 
 
21 There are no workforce impacts associated with this report 
 
Legal Impact 
 
22 None. 
 
Risk Management 
 
23 Failure to manage vehicle crossovers would invite a ‘free for all’ 

with potentially serious road safety implications.  
 
24 Application fees and the need to construct vehicle crossovers to 

adoptable standards (with associated cost) may discourage people 
from making application for vehicle crossovers. 

 
25 Vehicles habitually traversing a footway and/or verge without a 

proper vehicle crossover can cause damage to the highway 

Page 83



including trip hazard and other defects which can give rise to 
claims against the Council. 

 
 
Consultation 
 
26 There is no requirement under the Constitution for external 

consultation on this item 
 
 
Recommendation(s) 

27 It is recommended that: 
 
a) The Council charge an application fee of £130 in respect of 

vehicle crossover applications.  If the application is refused than 
it is proposed that £60, which is included to cover the cost of 
construction monitoring, be refunded; 

b) The Council require an applicant for a vehicle crossover to 
engage either a ‘Streetworks Qualified’ private contractor 
working under a Licence Agreement, or alternatively, the 
applicant could engage the Council’s DLO to undertake the 
work in the case where a quotation for the work has been 
requested and provided. 

c) Revise the current charge for constructing a vehicle crossover 
as part of a footway resurfacing scheme to a standard fee of 
£480.00 (for a total of up to 6 kerbs comprising 2 dropper kerbs 
and 4 straight drop kerbs).  Additional kerbs over the standard 6 
kerbs would then be charged at £100 each. [This is less than 
half the price for undertaking work independent of a 
maintenance scheme].  Where residents do not wish to pay for 
the crossing to be formalised then the Council will remove any 
obstructions such as ramps installed in the road channel line. 

d) The Council continue to take enforcement action in response to 
public complaints relating illegal vehicle crossovers on a case 
by case basis. 

 
Reason for Proposed Decision(s) 
 
28 To set out the Council’s policy in respect of the administration of 

applications for vehicle crossovers 
 
 

Page 84



Implementation of Decision 
 
29 The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day 

call in period 
 
Appendices 
 
30 None 
 
List of Background Papers 
 
31 None 
 
Officer Contact 
 
32 Mr Steve Owen, Highway & Drainage Services Manager, Tel: 

01639 686304 or email: s.owen@npt.gov.uk 

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



STREETSCENE AND ENGINEERING CABINET BOARD 

Officer Contact: Tammie Davies – SS&E Cab Board 20/10/17 

2017/2018 FORWARD WORK PLAN  

STREETSCENE AND ENGINEERING CABINET BOARD 

DATE Agenda Items 

Type 
(Decision, 
Monitoring or 
Information) 

Rotation 
(Topical, 
Annual, 
Biannual, 
Quarterly, 
Monthly) 

Contact 
Officer/Head of 
Service 

 
1 Dec 
2017 
 
 

Quarter 2 Performance Monitoring (17/18) Monitor Quarterly Shaun Davies/ Allison 
Headon 

Future of Redundant Tennis Courts and Bowling Greens Decision Topical Mike Roberts 

Flood Risk Management Plan Implementation Information  Mike Roberts 

Bridges Asset Plan Information Topical Dave Griffiths/ Hasan 
Hasan 

HDC - Highway Technical Design Guidance Decision Topical Dave Griffiths/ Dave 
Adlam 

Public Realm Review Following Housing Stock Transfer Decision Topical Mike Roberts 

Cemetery Rules & Regulations Decision Topical Mike Roberts 

Centenary Fields (Talbot Park) Decision Topical Mike Roberts/ Simon 
Brennan 

 

 

 

P
age 87

A
genda A

nnex



STREETSCENE AND ENGINEERING CABINET BOARD 

Officer Contact: Tammie Davies – SS&E Cab Board 20/10/17 

DATE Agenda Items 

Type 
(Decision, 
Monitoring or 
Information) 

Rotation 
(Topical, 
Annual, 
Biannual, 
Quarterly, 
Monthly) 

Contact 
Officer/Head of 
Service 

 
19 Jan 
2018 
 

Waste Strategy Review Decision Topical Mike Roberts 

Vehicle Fleet Procurement Programme 17/18 Decision Annual Dave Griffiths 

Road Safety Strategy Update Monitoring Annual Dave Griffiths/ Joy 
Smith 

 

DATE Agenda Items 

Type 
(Decision, 
Monitoring or 
Information) 

Rotation 
(Topical, 
Annual, 
Biannual, 
Quarterly, 
Monthly) 

Contact 
Officer/Head of 
Service 

 
2 March 
2018 

Quarter 3 Performance Monitoring (17/18) Monitor Quarterly Shaun Davies/ Allison 
Headon 

Combined Highways & Neighbourhood Works Programme 
17/18 

Decision Annual Mike Roberts/Dave 
Griffiths 

Dog Control Order Decision Topical Mike Roberts 

Management of Potholes Information Topical Mike Roberts 

 

P
age 88


	Agenda
	3 To receive the Minutes of the Previous Streetscene and Engineering Cabinet Board held 8 September, 2017
	4 Traffic Order - Church Lane, Gwaen Cae Gurwen
	5 Traffic Order - Company St and Cory St, Resolven
	6 Traffic Order - Heol Compton and Villiers Road, Skewen
	7 Traffic Order - Monastery Road, Neath Abbey
	8 Traffic Order - Penyard Road, Neath Abbey
	9 Traffic Order - Stratton Way, Neath Abbey
	10 Traffic Order - The Pines, Cilfrew
	11 Traffic Order - Water St and Corporation Rd, Port Talbot
	12 Review of Vehicle Crossover Applications
	 To receive the Forward Work Programme 2017/18

